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gations will no doubt be made of these shocks .. A 
descriptive catalogue of earthquakes of the Pac1fic 
coast of the United States from 1769 to 1928 was 
published in January 1939 by tho Seismological 
Society of America. The recorded shocks for Cali­
fornia occupy 231 pages whilst those for the remainder 
of the coast occupy 44 pages. 

Soviet Census 
:\loRE complete figures relating to the censtis of tho 

Soviet population taken on January 17, 1939, ha\·o 
been issued by tho State Planning Commission of the 
U.S.S.R. The figures cover the entire population of 
tho Union with the exception of the fur north, where 
tho census will be taken in the latter half of this year. 
The figures issued reveal that on January 17 last, the 
population of the Soviet Union numbered 170,467,186, 
including 81,664,981 males and 88,802,205 females. 
As compared with the census of 1926, the ·soviet 
population has increased by 23,439,271 or by 15·9 per 
cent, tho urban population being 55,909,908 or 
32·8 per cent of the as against 26,314,114 in 
1926, or 17·9 per cent of tho total. Owing to a typo­
graphical error in the note which appeared in NATURE 
of June 3 (p. 936), relating to preliminary figures of 
tho Soviet census, it was stated that the entire 
population had more than doubled. This should have 
read "the urban population has more than doubled". 
'fhe average annual increase of population in the 
U.S.S.R. during tho period 1926-39 was 1·23 per cent. 
The increase in tho birth-rate is illustrated by figures 
relating to some of the big towns of the Union. In 
1938 the average number of per thousand of 
population in :Moscow was 28·5, Leningrad 27·4, 
Kiev 27·4, Kharkov 27·7, Baku 33·9. There are 
174 towns in tho U.S.S.R. with populations of more 
than 50,000; 82 have populations of more than 
100,000 and eleven have populations of more than 
half a million. The population of :Moscow haq in­
creased from 2,029,425 in 1926 to 4,137,018 in 1939, 
or by 103·9 per cent, and that of Leningrad from 
1,690,065 in 1926 to 3,191,30! in 1939, or by 88·8 per 
cent. Four towns are included in the 1939 census 
which did not figure on the geographical maps in 
I 926, namely, Karaganda which now has a population 
of 165,937, Magnitogorsk with a population of 145,870, 
Stalinogorsk with a population of 76,207, and 
Komsomolsk-on-Amur with a population of 70,746. 
During tho period 1926-39, 1,536 new urban centres, 
213 of which have been constituted as towns, have 
sprung up on the territory of tho Soviet 
Union. 

Pulkovo Observatory 

THE chief observatory in tho U.S.S.R., situated at 
Pulkovo, a few miles outside Leningrad, celebrates 
the hundredth anniversary of its foundation this 
year. To-day a number of buildings devoted to 
astronomy and related sciences surround the original 
central edifice, with its circular hall through the 
middle of which runs the Pulkovo meridian. Tlifs 
hall is now used as the observatory's museum, and 
it contains some extremely interesting exhibits, 

including a working model of the solar system, made 
by an UIJknown craftsman 150 years ago. Not only 
do the earth and planets revolve around the sun in 
this model, but also tho glass shade which covers it is 
utilized for representation of the stars and con­
stellations. The library, situated in a gallery around 
tho main dome, contains some very valuable UIJique 
works, including Kepler manuscripts. The Pulkovo 
Fundamental Catalogues of Stars are widely known 
for the accuracy of the observations entered in 
them. Needless to say, tho observatory is also rich 
in astronomical photographs and similar research 
materials. At tho time of its foundation the re­
fractor instaiicd in tho observatory, one with a lens 
of fifteen inches diameter, was .the largest in the 
world. It was added to in 1885 by tho installation 
of another refractor with a thirty-inch lens. 

Positive Eugenic Policy 
IN his Galton Lecture, Dr. C. G. Darwin discussed 

a positive eugenic policy (Eugenical News, 31, No. 1). 
He pointed out that a eugenic policy could only 
exist under conditions of civilization. In centuries 
up to the nineteenth, populations were stationary 
or increased but slowly. Then wages began to rise 
or the prico of wheat went down, and with it tho 
mortality rates in infancy and adulthood. It was no 
longer essential to have a certain level of intelligence 
in order to stay alive. Natural selection ceases to 
operate in civilization, and the things on which 
surpluses shall be spent are determined by advertise­
ments. The relative absence of natural selection 
inevitably leads to degeneration unless eugenic 
selection can take its place. As regards negative 
eugenics, the propagation of mental weakness is 
much moro serious than tho transmission of a bodily 
weakness with u high intellect. As regards positive 
eugenics, wo need not wait for full knowledge of the 
human genetic constitution, to construct human 
beings as an engineer constructs u bridge. Quite 
enough is already known with reasonable probability 
for immediate eugenic action. Bohr's principle of 
complementarity, implying a mutual effect of subject 
and object, comes in here. The need is urgent for a 
simple national eugenic policy which will induce tho 
better endowed to have larger families, and history 
will not spare us if we do not set to work at once to 
carry it out. 

Forestry at Oxford 

A STATUTE amending the regulations for the 
School of Forestry at Oxford has recently been 
approved and comes immediately into force. Hitherto 
the normal avenue to the final examination has been 
a special preliminary examination of a comparatively 
simple nature that could be taken by the student, if 
he wished, before he came into residence. Now the 
prior qualificutions required of candidates for the 
final examination are so much higher that the School 
becomes, in part at least, a post-graduate one. 
Candidates are now required to have obtained 
honours in the new Scienco :\fodcrations examination 
or in some fmal .school or to be graduates of another 
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